

Chapter AT



Grand Rapids, Michigan

2023-2024

P.E.O. SISTERHOOD

ORGANIZED JANUARY 21, 1869 MT. PLEASANT, IOWA



ORGANIZED APRIL 5, 1940 GRAND RAPIDS, MICHIGAN

FLOWER: MARGUERITE COLORS: WHITE AND YELLOW



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Chapter AT Officers	1
P.E.O. Grace	2
Opening Ode	2
Objects and Aims	
Committees	
Michigan State Chapter Officers	9
Past Presidents Of Chapter AT	11
Chapter Eternal (1990-2023)	
Programs 2023-2024	15
P.E.O	23
P.E.O. Projects	23
Chapter AT Students	28
P.E.O. Creed	29
Membership	31
Nonresident Members	54
The P.E.O. Website	57
Social Media Accounts	57
Bylaws	58
Calling, Caring, Drive-Sharing Tree	63
Birthdays	
Calendars	71

CHAPTER AT OFFICERS

President	Pam Luetkemeyer
Vice President	Sherri Donovan
Recording Secretary	Susan Zimmerman
Corresponding Secretary	Jonell Williams
Treasurer	Theresa Tiesma
Chaplain	Sally Pitzer
Guard	Iill Golden



P.E.O. GRACE

We give thanks, Dear Lord above
For food and health and all thy love.
Grant that our sisterhood may grow
Look down and bless our P.E.O.

OPENING ODE

We who are sisters in heart and spirit Give thanks for the star and its message. May purity, justice, faith, truth and love Make glad and holy the secret places Of our hearts. Amen.



OBJECTS AND AIMS

The objects and aims of this Sisterhood shall be general improvement, which shall comprehend more especially the following points:

To seek growth in charity toward all with whom we associate, and a just comprehension of, and adherence to, the qualities of Faith, Love, Purity, Justice, and Truth.

To seek growth in knowledge and in culture, and to obtain all possible wisdom from nature, art, books, study, and society, and to radiate all light possible by conversation, by writing and by the right exercise of any talent we possess. To aim at self-control, equipoise and symmetry of character, and temperance in opinions, speech, and habits.

It shall be the chief duty of each member to consider thoughtfully the full import of P.E.O. This will include a sincere regard for our influence in the community, a careful consideration of feeling when speaking, and a determination to do all we can at all times and under all circumstances to express a loving concern for each sister.



COMMITTEES

Committee members serve on their committee(s) for a two-year period.

Auditing / Budgeting - Plans the budget and
coordinates with Finance on fundraisers.
Jan Sabin
Barbara Curphey
Bylaws – Committee responsible for writing and proposing bylaw changes Kathy Miller
Jill Golden
Finance / Fundraising – Responsible for meeting with Auditing/Budget committee to plan and organize all chapter fundraisers. They need to pass dates and fundraising events to the program committee in MayStephanie Oldis
Historian – Maintaining Chapter scrapbook and sending information to the State Historian.

ift and Courtesy Deb Adams
Ruth Naylor
ewsletter/PublicityCindy Wallace
Cynthia Grapczynski
dembership - Responsible for strengthening napter membership and participation.
Helen Basso
Cindi O'Connor
ominating – Responsible for contacting potential andidates for open offices in January, and to resent slate of officers at the last meeting in ebruaryKathy Miller
Barbara Curphey
arliamentarianJulie Becker
onnect, Care, Drive-Share
Diane Bartoszewicz

Social / Fundraising – Responsible for planning / hosting social events for members, BIL events and family events (2-3 events per year)
Stephanie Oldis – Chair
Pam Luetkemeyer
Julie Becker
Julia Best
Diane Bartoszewicz
Kathy Miller
Jeanne Tiggleman
Barbara Curphey
TLC – To be available to help in a P.E.O.'s time of need
Technology – To be go-to-technology person Molly Paulson

P.E.O. Philanthropy & Projects

ChairSherri Donovan
Cottey CollegeSue Sundheimer
Educational Loan Fund Anne Dale Blair
International Peace ScholarshipJoan Cornelison
Michigan P.E.O. FundDiane Bartoszewicz
Program for Continuing Education Jill Golden
P.E.O. Scholar Award Cathie Carpenter
Star ScholarshipJulie Becker – Chair
Laura Weld

Program / Yearbook - Responsible for planning
the calendar of meetings for the next year,
contacting all hostesses, co-hostesses, and program
presenters to verify their commitment to that
event. Starts in May with yearbooks ready by early
AugustMichele Carlson – Chair
Deb Adams
Pam Luetkemeyer
Jan Sabin
Teresa Tiessma
Cathie Carpenter
Anne Dale Blair
Julie Becker

MICHIGAN STATE CHAPTER OFFICERS

President (EN)	Pam Daugherty
	W4721 Spruce St
	Vulcan, MI 49892-8980
	906-396-8835
	peopamd@gmail.com
Vice President (Y)	Tami Budd
	2975 Memorial Dr
N	Muskegon, MI 49445-2121
	231-557-0710
	tami.budd.peo@gmail.com
Organizer (FW)	Beth Lundy
	3578 Cabaret Trl
	Okemos, MI 48864-4092
	610-246-0029
	Bethpeolundy@gmail.com
Treasurer (D0)	Stacy McGowan
	23378 Golfpointe Cir
	Grosse Ile, MI 48138-2163
	734-552-5926
	stacympeo@gmail.com

Secretary (EW)......Kim Royle 11611 Saddlebrook Cir Freeland, MI 48623-8436 989-860-0335 kroyle@charter.net

Assistant to the Executive Board (DG)

Kathy Sankey 12555 Cleveland Ave Buchanan, MI 49107-9339 269-930-0383 MIpeoassistant@gmail.com

Always Sparkle

PAST PRESIDENTS OF CHAPTER AT

(*Deceased)

Margaret MacLoughlin*	1940-42
Marion Smith*	1942-44
Florence Oldenburger*	1944-46
Doris Luther*	1946-48
Marion Pickney Gordon*	1948-50
Esther Johnson Naser*	1950-52
Kathlyn Collins*	1952-54
Virginia Gates*	1954-56
Kathleen Wiinikka*	1956-58
Vivian Chindlblom Barker*	1958-60
Irene Straw*	1960-62
Dorothy Porter*	1962-64
Elsie Porter*	1964-66
Gloria Bulau	1966-68
Margaret Deabler*	1968-69
Jane Damon*	1969-71
Martha Peters*	1971-73
Glea Frankforter*	1973-75
Gene Banta*	1975-77
Kathleen Wiinikka*	1977-79

Betty Booth*	1979-81
Eleanor Sanders*	1981-83
Mary Lou Hoek*	1983-85
Martha Peters*	1985-87
Ruth Naylor	1987-89
Martha Nargang-Harper	1989-91
Mary Lou Hoek*	1991-93
Harriet Gaertner*	
Florence Neumann*	1995-97
Sue Sundheimer	1997-99
Anne Dale Blair	1999-01
Mary Bartha	2001-02
Anne Dale Blair	2002-03
Debera Adams	2003-05
Marcia Bartlett	2005-07
Kathy Miller	2007-09
Susan Zimmerman	
Sue Smith	2011-13
Sandy Walls	2013-15
Cindi O'Connor	2015-17
Helen Basso	2017-19
Jan Sabin	2019-21
Iulia Rackar	2021-23



CHAPTER ETERNAL (1990-2023)

$A\ Tribute\ To\ Our\ Deceased\ Sisters...$

(¤Charter Member)

Kathleen Wiinikka06/19/9	2
Marion Gordon¤04/18/9	3
Doris Luther¤03/28/9	4
Winnie Larkin¤05/22/9	4
Helen Olsen05/15/9	5
Virginia Gates¤01/15/9	9
Dorothy Porter12/26/0	0
Martha Peters05/07/0	2
Verna Teeuwissen10/04/0	4
Beverly Jessen04/20/0	5
Eileen Anderson	

Jane Damon	.09/15/09
Marion Smith¤	.04/26/10
Harriet Gaertner	.09/02/11
Glea Frankforter	.10/21/11
Mary Lou Hoek	.03/04/12
Sandy Siegel	.03/07/12
Elsie Porter	.05/08/12
Cecily "Cec" Carpenter	.07/27/12
Judy Krombeen	.04/17/14
Suzanne Aupperlee	.08/07/14
Eleanor Sanders	.12/10/15
Wuanita Neureuther	.02/19/17
Lucy Grant (Chapter T, Ohio)	.05/24/18
Barbara Friend	.06/22/18
Florence Neumann	.04/16/20
Barbara Foote-Johnson	.01/15/21
Rosemary Banka	.05/27/22
Helen Seper	.05/05/23

PROGRAMS 2023-2024



We ask for goodwill donations for dinners and brunches (not potlucks). Please contribute what you would pay for a dinner out, as this is our biggest fund-raising source. Guests don't contribute!

September 11, 2023 Monday, 6:00 PM Dinner by Officers

Program: "My Mother's Casserole" Recipe

Share

Hostess: Deb Adams Co-hostess: Anne Dale Blair

Deb's Club House

September 19, 2023 Tuesday, 5:00-8:00 PM Fundraiser – Mention P.E.O. anytime 5-8PM

Culver's 6300 28th St SE Grand Rapids, MI 49546

September 21-23, 2023 Thursday - Saturday P.E.O. International Convention



October 2, 2023 Monday, 6:30 PM

Program: Grand Rapids History

Hostess: Michele Carlson

Grand Rapids Public Library History Room Level 4 111 Library Street NE Grand Rapids MI 49503 616-988-5400

October 7, 2023 Saturday, 1:00-4:00 PM Michigan State President's Reception

First Presbyterian Church 395 Hamilton Ave Kingsford, MI 49802

October 21, 2023 Sa

Saturday, 11:00 AM

Lunch

Program: International Convention Report

Hostess: Pam Luetkemeyer

Riverdog Tavern 117 W Main St # 119 Middleville, MI 49333-9330 269-205-2139

November 4, 2023 Game Night Saturday, 7:00 PM

Hosts: Anne and Tom Blair

4216 Baywood Dr SE Grand Rapids, MI 49546-2216 616-706-6524

\$10/per person

November 13, 2023 Monday, 6:30 PM

Dessert

Exemplification of Initiation

Program: Isaac Walton Conservation

Presentation, by Ron Waybrant

Hostess: Helen Basso Co-hostess: Julie Becker

November 13, 2023 Monday Fundraiser Kick Off - "From Soup to Nuts"

December 3, 2023

Sunday, TBD

Holiday Party
Wreath Making

Kauffman Family Farm 6360 Peddler Lake Clarksville, MI 48815 616-389-4805

December 11, 2023

Monday, 6:30 PM

Dessert

Cookie Exchange

Program: IPS Student Yetunde Alabede

Hostess: Anne Dale Blair Co-hostess: Diane Bartoszewicz January 20, 2024 Saturday, 10:00 AM

Brunch

Founder's Day Recognition Program: Book Share

Hostess: Deb Adams Co-hostess: Laura Weld Co-hostess: Teresa Tiesma

North Kent Presbyterian Church 6175 Kuttshill Dr NE Rockford, MI 49341 616-866-2230

February 5, 2024

Monday, 6:30 PM

Dessert

Nomination of Officers President's Letter

Program: Cheryl and Bob Humbarger

Travelog

Hostess: Cathie Carpenter Co-hostess: Suzanne Butler-Lich February 24, 2024 Saturday, 10:00 AM

Brunch

Program: Children's Advocacy Center

Hostess: Laura Weld Co-hostess: Deb Adams Co-hostess: Jan Sabin

North Kent Presbyterian Church 6175 Kuttshill Dr NE Rockford, MI 49341 616-866-2230

March 4, 2024

Monday, 6:30 PM

Dessert

Installation of Officers

Program: **P.E.O. Author Gail Goolsby**

"Unveiled Truth"

Hostess: Sherri Donovan Co-hostess: Julie Gotch

March 16, 2024

Saturday, 11:00 AM

BIL Event

Maple Syrup Making Presentation and Lunch

Kauffman Family Farm 6360 Peddler Lake Clarksville, MI 48815 616-389-4805 April 15, 2024 Monday, 6:30 PM

Dessert

Program: Hydroponic Gardening Super

Bloom Farms

Hostess: Julie Becker Co-hostess: Kathy Miller

April 28, 2024

Sunday, 4:00 PM

Fundraising Dinner

Hostess: Helen Basso Co-hostess: Jonell Williams Co-hostess: Diane Bartoszewicz Co-hostess: Cindi OConnor

May 3-5, 2024 Michigan State Convention Friday - Sunday

Grand Traverse Resort 100 Grand Traverse Village Blvd. Acme, MI 49610 231-534-6000

May 20, 2024

Monday, 6:30 PM

Dessert

Program: Tour of Vander Jagt Mansion

Hostess: Molly Paulson Co-hostess: Michele Carlson

2615 Plainfield NE Grand Rapids, MI 49505



June 3, 2024

Monday, 6:30 PM

Dessert

Michigan State Convention Report Program: Volunteer Share

Hostess: Michele Carlson Co-hostess: Cheryl Humbarger



P.E.O. is an international women's organization with an interest in providing women increased opportunities for higher education.

There are over 5,600 chapters in the USA and Canada with approximately 250,000 members.

Organized as a college sorority on the campus of Iowa Wesleyan College, Mt. Pleasant, Iowa, in 1869, P.E.O. later became a community organization for women.



P.E.O. FOUNDATION

The P.E.O. Foundation is a *SERVICE* to the Sisterhood that benefits *ALL* of the projects. It is a nonprofit corporation established in 1961 to

encourage tax-deductible giving to the P.E.O. Projects. Because it qualifies as a charity, gifts and bequests to the Foundation are deductible for tax purposes. Each year, the Foundation distributes funds based on the needs of individual projects.

P.E.O. PROJECTS

The purposes of P.E.O. are educational and philanthropic. The sisterhood maintains 6 major programs.

P.E.O. has given over \$321 million in financial assistance to more than 105,000 recipients of the ELF, IPS, PCE, PSA and STAR projects.



COTTEY COLLEGE

A nationally ranked, fully accredited, private, liberal arts and sciences college for women, located in Nevada, MO. Founded in 1884, it has been owned

and supported by P.E.O. since 1927. About 98% of students receive some form of financial assistance. The Michigan State Chapter has established the Michigan Cottey College Scholarship Fund.

Since the Fall of 2011, Cottey College has offered selected Bachelor of Arts programs: Biology, Business Administration-Management, Criminology, English, Environmental Studies, Health Sciences, International Business, International Relations, Liberal Arts, Organizational Leadership, Psychology, Secondary Education, and Women, Gender, and Sexuality Studies,

Cottey is pleased to be recognized again among the most elite colleges and universities in the country. We offer this as proof of our commitment to providing students a challenging curriculum at an affordable price. Cottey was ranked as #4 Best Regional College, #4 Most International Students, #5 Best Undergraduate Teaching, and further recognized for social mobility and as a best value college in the Midwest region in 2022 by *U.S. News & World Report*.

P.E.O. EDUCATIONAL LOAN FUND



The Educational Loan Fund is a revolving loan fund to provide financial assistance at low interest rates. Since it was established in 1907, more than \$195.4 million dollars

have been loaned to more than 45,210 students. The maximum ELF loan is \$12,000 associate and undergraduate degrees; \$15,000 for master's degrees and \$20,000 for doctoral degrees at 2% interest with eight or ten-year payback periods depending on loan amounts beginning six months after graduation.



P.E.O. International Peace Scholarship Fund

The International Peace Scholarship Fund was established in 1949 to provide scholarships for international

women students to pursue graduate study in the United States and Canada. Students upon completion of their studies return to their countries active ambassadors of international peace. The maximum award is based on need, up to \$10,000. Over \$51.3 million has been awarded to 6,866 women recipients from over 178 different countries since 1949.



P.E.O. PROGRAM FOR CONTINUING EDUCATION

Grant assistance to women whose education has been interrupted and who find it necessary to resume

studies due to changing demands in their lives. Established in 1973, this project has awarded \$62.4 million to over 49,700 women. The maximum amount for this one time, need-based grant is \$3,000. Applicants are sponsored by P.E.O. chapters which provide support in addition to monetary aid. The PCE trustees announced that in 2023 they will be awarding 50 special PCE Anniversary Grants in the amount of \$5,000 each to applicants demonstrating significant financial need and who upon completion of their educational program will vastly improve the opportunity for financial stability for themselves or their families.



P.E.O. SCHOLAR AWARD

The P.E.O. Scholar Award was established in 1991 to provide substantial awards to women in the United States and Canada who are pursuing doctoral degree level

at a college or university. Beginning in 2021, the P.E.O. Scholar Award increased to \$20,000 and is awarded on the basis of merit. Since 1991, over \$30.3 million has been awarded to over 2,630 women. Chapter nominations are accepted from August 20 to November 20.



P.E.O. STAR SCHOLARSHIP

The P.E.O. STAR Scholarship was established in 2009 to provide \$2,500 scholarships awards for exceptional high school senior

women to attend an accredited postsecondary educational institution in the United States or Canada in the next academic year. Since 2009, \$17.2 million in STAR Scholarships have been awarded to over 6,917 students. Applications must be submitted online between August 15 and October 15.

MICHIGAN COTTEY COLLEGE AND SCHOLARSHIP COMMITTEE

The Michigan Cottey College Scholarship is awarded to a first-year Michigan resident who has been accepted for admission and has the highest grade point average over a 3.0. This award is funded by donations. Grants-in-aid are also available from this fund to 1st and 2nd year Cottey students. Applications due by March 1st.

MICHIGAN P.E.O. FUND, INC.

These funds are used to aid needy and/or elderly people with basic living expenses, not educational needs. Both one-time grants and continuing aid assistance are given.

CHAPTER AT STUDENTS

Yetunde Alabede

1230 Garden City Rd Apt 215 East Lansing, MI 48823-6071 pragmatics011@gmail.com 910-364-4064

Heidi Faust

B 4/30

P.E.O. Hall, Cottey College 1000 W. Austin Blvd. Nevada MO 64772 heidi.faust@student.Cottey.edu

Madelyn Green

4535 Loirre Valley Dr Grand Rapids, MI 49546-1510 mcgreen1112@gmail.com

McKenna Vanoveren

 $mckenna.van over en@spartans.ut.edu\\616-729-4898$

P.E.O. CREED

I Believe in P.E.O. and in all that it stands for, not alone in fact, but in act.

I Believe in my sisters, in the honesty of their intentions, in the purity of their motives, in the integrity of their character, and in the loyalty of their friendship.

I Believe in the sweetness and helpfulness of friendship and the joy of serving others.

I Believe in the virtues of Faith, Love, Purity, Justice and Truth, and in the hope that lures us on.

I Believe that life does not consist in the abundance of the material things we possess, but in the abundance of things we are and do.

I Believe that it is within our power as P.E.O. to help each other, that the rough places may be smooth, and the crooked places straight, the burden less heavy and life a continual joy and blessing, ever increasing, growing richer and richer.

I Believe in the present of our Sisterhood with its opportunities, in the future with its obligations, in the divine joy of living here and here-after, in the enlarged and ever enlarging sphere of usefulness that is opening up before us each year.

Effie Hoffman Rogers P.E.O. Record

P.E.D.



MEMBERSHIP

SnH nR nv D +6 Ù82 V /Ù1*+\$

(***70 Year Member) (**60 Year Member) (*50 Year Member) (NC – No Phone Call)

CHAPTER AT Organized April 5, 1940 Grand Rapids, Michigan Flower: Marguerite Colors: White and Yellow

Adams, Mrs. Debera

13665 Safflower Ln Cedar Springs, MI 49319-8280 616-263-9654 616-295-6872 (cell) B 6/24 wedeada@charter.net

From US-131 – West on 17 Mile Rd.
South (left) on Cedarfield Blvd. East
(left) on Lilyfield Dr, right on Safflower Lane.

Meetings at clubhouse – first building on right after turning off 17-Mile Rd onto Cedarfield Blvd.

I 4/4/93

Bartoszewicz, Diane (Lenny) 2505 Albert Dr SE Grand Rapids, MI 49506-4703 616-634-1859 B 12/9 dianebarto@yahoo.com

From Breton Rd SE and Burton St SE

- Head north on Breton to Boston St
SE. Left (north) on York Dr SE to
Albert Dr SE. Turn Left (west) on
Albert to 2505 on the south side of



Basso, Helen (Mrs. Bill)
3982 Preserve Dr NE
Belmont, MI 49306-8506
Home: 616-438-2671
B 11/15
helenbasso@icloud.com
From Northland Dr - East on
Cannonsburg Rd NE. South (right) on
Stoney View Dr NE. East (left) on
Preserve Dr NE.



Becker, Julie (Mrs. John) 8221 Autumn Acres Dr Rockford MI 49341-6300 616-304-3304 B 7/15 juliebecker2002@yahoo.com

From northbound US 131 – East on 10 Mile Rd NE. Right (south) Autumn Acres Dr to 8221.

From northbound Wolverine Blvd

NE – West on W Division St NE (10 Mile Rd NE). Left (south)

Autumn Acres Dr to 8221.

Beck, Pam

75 Heron Dr NW Apt 220 Grand Rapids, MI 49534-1693 586-615-2630 B 7/26 pwbeck51@gmail.com

Once on I-96 W: Take exit 26 toward Fruit Ridge Ave. Turn left onto Fruit Ridge Ave NW. Turn right onto 3 Mile Rd NW. Continue on 3 Mile Rd NW. Continue on Johnson St NW. Turn left onto Kenowa Ave NW. Turn right onto Heron Dr NW.

I 12/05

I 9/20/99



Best, Julia I 4/17/23 7570 Kenrob Dr SE Grand Rapids, MI 49546-9120 513-509-9141 B 7/6 bestja@yahoo.com

From I-96 E: Take exit 40 toward Cascade Rd/Cascade/Cascade Rd EAST onto Cascade Rd SE. Turn right onto Kenrob Dr SE. Arrive at Kenrob Dr SE. 7570 is on the left.



Bos, Anita (Mrs. Todd) 5868 Hickory Ridge Dr SW Wyoming, MI 49518-8339 Home: 616-257-0803 B 3/24 bosie@comcast.net

From US-131/M-6. West on M-6, Exit North on Byron Center , Right on 56^{th} St. Just past Ivanrest, 1^{st} left on Hickory Ridge Drive.



Bosco, Tami 545 Lakeside Dr SE Apt C Grand Rapids, MI 49506-2927 Home: 608-215-7165 B 7/8 zbosco@msn.com

Lakewood Hills apartments – Across the street from Rose's on Reeds Lake. Park in back of complex



Butler-Lich, Suzanne (Mrs. Richard)* I 6/12/71

946 Orchard Ave SE Grand Rapids, MI 49506-3447 Home: 616-340-4511 B 4/4

From Breton and Lake Drive – South on Breton (1 block), West on Argentina (4 blocks), North on Orchard.

suzannebutlerlich@gmail.com

Carlson, Michele (Mrs. Lee) 866 Washtenaw St NE Grand Rapids, MI 49505-4846 616-532-7129 B 1/15 michelem.carlson@gmail.com

From Leonard and Fuller – West on Leonard to Diamond. North on Diamond (6 blocks) to Washtenaw. West on Washtenaw. (Just South of Knapp off Diamond).



Carpenter, Cathie (Jim) 4049 Baywood Dr SE Grand Rapids, MI 49546-2211 Home: 616-575-0071 Cell: 616-250-6125 B 4/17 jdcgcarp@sbcglobal.net

From Forest Hill and Cascade Road -Turn north on Forest Hill to first left (Greenbrier) turn left to Baywood Drive. Continue on Baywood. Home is on the right side of street.



Carpenter, Christine 6640 Grace Point Dr SE Caledonia, MI 49316-7974 Home: 616-803-0225 Cell: 616-430-8831 B 12/23

From Kalamazoo and 68th Street – East on 68th Street. Left on Avalon Pointe Drive SE. Right on Grace Point

christie.teacher5@gmail.com

Drive.



Clodfelder, Nancy (Mrs. Paul) 1919 Boston St SE Apt V007 Grand Rapids, MI 49506-4100 Cell: 616-450-3641 B 3/10 ncclod@sbcglobal.net

From Lake Dr SE: Turn south onto Plymouth Rd SE. Turn left onto Boston St SE. Arrive at Boston St SE.



Cornelison, Joan 400 3 Mile Rd NE Grand Rapids, MI 49505-3343 616-635-7993 B 1/23 Joan5306@att.net

From Fuller Ave NE – Fuller to 3 Mile Road NE. West on 3 Mile Road past both Plainfield Ave NE and Coit Ave NE. Proceed just past Coit and before Oakwood Ave NE.



Covey, Cosette*
1819 Millbrook St SE
Grand Rapids, MI 49508-2656
Home: 616-241-1113

B 12/21

From Kalamazoo and 28th Street – South on Kalamazoo. East on Millbrook.



Crossin, Angie
4204 Hemlock Dr
Valparaiso, IN 46383-1820
219-714-3854
B 3/6
acrossin@crossinlawofficesllc.com



Curphey, Barbara (Mrs. John) 2201 Wilshire Dr SE Grand Rapids, MI 49506-4017 630-346-8040 B 10/7 bcurphey@gmail.com

Mailing Address: PO Box 68433 Grand Rapids, MI 49516-8433 13/17

From Plymouth Ave SE: East on Hall St SE to Wilshire Dr SE. 2201 is first house east of Pinecrest Ave SE

Dale Blair, Anne (Ms. Tom)*
4216 Baywood Dr SE
Grand Rapids, MI 49546-2216
Cell: 616-706-6524
B 4/21
awdblair@gmail.com

From East Beltline and Fulton – East on Fulton, South on Greenbrier Dr., West on Baywood.



Donovan, Sherri (Brian) 2601 Cascade Springs Dr SE Grand Rapids, MI 49546-7417 616-780-2191 B 4/28 sherridonovanpeo@comcast.net

From eastbound 28th St SE – East to Cascade Rd SE. Turn right onto Cascade. Turn left onto Thorncrest Dr SE (immediately after

crossing the river) and bear left onto Cascade Springs Dr SE. Turn left onto Cascade Springs Dr SE. Second house on left.



Golden, Jill 201 Hillview Ave NE

Grand Rapids, MI 49503-3825 Home: 616-368-0677 B 7/31

jdgkea@gmail.com

From Michigan St NE – South on Plymouth Ave SE. East on Mayfair Dr NE. Turn left on Hillview Ave NE.



Gotch, Julie

2053 Wilshire Dr SE Grand Rapids, MI 49506-4013 616-821-6738 B 2/2

jkgotch@gmail.com

From Lake Dr SE: Turn south onto Plymouth Rd SE. Turn left onto Hall St SE. Turn right onto Wilshire Dr SE. 2053 Wilshire Dr SE is on the left.



Grapczynski, Cynthia 2459 Rockhill Dr NE Grand Rapids, MI 49525-1291 616-302-1030 B 9/19 panigrap76@gmail.com From I-96: Turn north Plainfield Ave

From I-96: Turn north Plainfield Ave NE. Turn left onto Rockhill Dr NE. Arrive at Rockhill Dr NE. 2459 Rockhill Dr NE is on the right.



Hofweber, Barb

3092 Windcrest Way NE Grand Rapids, MI 49525-7016 616-350-8803 B 12/5 barbhofweber@me.com

From E Beltline Ave NE – From south of Leonard St NE, make the "Michigan U-turn" just north of Leonard at the Fuji Yama. Head south to Windcrest Dr NE. Bear right (north) at the fork and

find parking at the third condo on south side, fire hydrant in front.

I 1/17/22



Humbarger, Cheryl (Mrs. Robert) 6261 White Clover Ln SE Caledonia MI 49316-7364 269-924-7593 B 8/11 cherylhum@aol.com

From Grand Rapids: – South on M-37 (East Beltline/Broadmoor Ave SE). Continue on M-37 past M-6. East on 76th St SE. South on Cherry Valley Ave SE. West on Black Cherry Way SE. Turn east (right) on to White Clover Lane



I 5/8/13

Luetkemeyer, Pam (Mrs. Phil) 9085 Lakefield Ct SE Alto, MI 49302-9579 231-923-8830 B 12/7 deercreek4@yahoo.com

From Broadmoor Ave SE (M-37) – South of Grand Rapids to 84th St SE. East on 84th St to Whitneyville Ave SE. South to 92nd St SE; left on Lakefield CT



Maj, Jolanta

1839 N Wyndham Hill Dr NE # 303 Grand Rapids, MI 49505-6336 616-375-9130 B 3/24 jmaj242@gmail.com

From East Beltline – West on Knapp St NE. North on W Wyndham Hill Dr NE, which is between Dean Lake Ave NE and Ball Ave NE



Meeker, Sally

1273 Dogwood Meadows Dr SE Ada, MI 49301-9442 616-915-4188 B 1/9

namiewe@gmail.com

From Fulton St (M-21) – East to Ada. South on Ada Dr SE. To south on Headley St SE (becomes Thornapple River Dr SE) to Bear left onto Buttrick

Ave SE. Left on Grand River Dr SE. Left on Thornapple Club Dr SE. First right onto Dogwood Meadows Dr SE. Proceed to end of cul-de-sac.



Miller, Kathy (Mrs. John) 7924 Ramsdell Dr NE Rockford, MI 49341-8079 Home: 616-874-8490

Cell: 616-446-9247

B 7/14

klmillergr72@gmail.com

From East Beltline – North on East Beltline to Belding Road (M-44) East on Belding Road to Ramsdell Road (5 miles). North on Ramsdell Road about 1 ½ miles.



Mitchell, Kathleen (Chad Naylor)

88 S Kent St

Kent City, MI 49330-9439 Home: 616-406-6523

B8/19

KathleenMarieMitchell@gmail.com

Via US-131 - Take US-131 N to 17 Mile Rd (M46) exit. Left on 17 Mile Rd. to Kent St which is BEFORE Main St. Left on S Kent St.

I 10/5/09

Via M37 - Take M37 north to S Main Street (Peach Ridge Ave

NW). N to Spring St. Right to S Kent St, left to 88

Naylor, Ruth (Mrs. Marvin) 1739 Scott Creek Dr NE Belmont, MI 49306-9786 Cell: 616-550-8146 B 11/9 naylor.ruth@gmail.com West River Dr to Samrick - North on Samrick. Right on Scott Creek Drive.



Neubig, Betsy (Mrs.ChrisVandenBerg)

1910 El Dorado Dr SE Grand Rapids, MI 49506-6572 Home: 616-452-4995 **NC** B 8/3 eneubig@aol.com

From Plymouth & Hall - North on Plymouth to El Dorado (1 block), East on El Dorado.



O'Connor, Cindi (Mrs. Robert) 4456 Sun Drop NE Comstock Park, MI 49321-7912 Cell: 616-450-1913 B 5/16 cynthiaoconnor51@gmail.com

From US-131 – Exit on W River Dr NE heading south (right). First right onto Division Ave N. Right onto Water Lily Way. Continue as name changes at end to Sun Drop Dr

From W River Dr NE – Division Ave is south of US-131 overpass. West (right) onto Division Ave N. Right onto Water Lily Way. Continue as name changes at end to Sun Drop Dr

Oldis, Stephanie (Mrs. Mark) 7035 Riverwood Ln SE Grand Rapids, MI 49546-9762 630-742-6759 (she texts) B 11/9 stephanieoldis@gmail.com

From 28th St SE and Cascade Rd SE Area – South on Cascade Rd SE to Thornapple River Dr SE. East/north on Thornapple River Dr SE to Riverwood Ln SE





Paulson, Molly (Mrs. Jeff) 2126 3 Mile Rd NE Grand Rapids, MI 49505-3442 616-443-7034 B 11/13 paulsonm@gvsu.edu

From East Beltline NE – West on 3 Mile Rd NE. Just past Dean Lake Ave NE on South side of 3 Mile Rd NE



Pitzer, Sally (Ralph) 11632 Megan Way Dr Rockford, MI 49341-1614 904-314-3433 B 11/20 salpitzer@comcast.com

From US-131 N: Take exit 101 onto M-57 toward Greenville. Turn right onto 14 Mile Rd NE toward Greenville. After 2.5 miles, turn left onto Rockford Springs Dr. Turn right onto Addison Way Dr. Turn left onto Addison Way. Turn left onto Megan Way Dr.



Sabin, Jan (Mrs. Fred) 7265 Red Bud Ln SE Grand Rapids, MI 49546-9703 Cell: 616-250-7464 B 7/17 jansabin1@gmail.com

(Between Cascade Rd SE and Grand River Dr SE). **From Cascade Rd SE**, north on Thornapple River Dr SE. Right on Red Bud Ln SE. House is on left.



Smiewec, Dianne (Mrs. William) 1273 Dogwood Meadows Dr SE Ada, MI 49301-9442 Home: 616-450-3492 B 10/4 dianne.smiewec@gmail.com

From Fulton St (M-21) – East to Ada. South on Ada Dr SE. To south on Headley St SE (becomes Thornapple River Dr SE) to Bear left onto Buttrick Ave SE. Left on Grand River Dr SE. Left on Thornapple Club Dr SE. First right onto Dogwood Meadows Dr SE. Proceed to cul-de-sac



Sundheimer, Sue (Mrs. Steve) 2189 Summer Brook Dr SE Kentwood, MI 49508-0610 Home: 616-340-7301 B 8/17 suesundheimer@gmail.com From Kalamazoo & 60th – East on 60th

From Kalamazoo & 60th – East on 60th (6 streets), North on Windbrook (across from Pinewood Middle School), house at end of Windbrook.



Terlip, Margaret
2156 Jamestown Dr SE
Kentwood, MI 49508-6554
Cell: 616-581-0313
B 11/19
m.terlip@comcast.net

From M-6. North on Kalamazoo, past 60th St SE to Gentian Dr. East on Gentian, bear right as it becomes Jamestown at Ramblewood



Tiesma, Teresa (Mrs. Rich) 1022 40th St SW Wyoming, MI 49509-4406 616-328-1874 B 8/16 teresatiesma@gmail.com

From 36^{th} St and US-131–West on 36^{th} street. Left on Clyde Park to 40^{th} St. Right on 40^{th} street. Just past Herman St on left.



Tiggleman, Jeanne (Mrs. Bob) 3311 Egypt Valley Ave NE Ada, MI 49301-9535 616-540-0497 B 12/4 jeannetiggleman@yahoo.com

From Knapp St NE – East and cross over the Grand River. Continue to Egypt Valley Ave NE. North on Egypt Valley Ave Look for drive on left.



Wallace, Cindy (Mrs. Bill) 2465 Mayo Dr Freemont, MI 49412-8781 Cell: 616-322-2973 B 5/9 Cdw2973@sbcglobal.net

From Grand Rapids – North on M-37. West on W 40th St. Turn north on S Ferris Ave. West on W 32nd St. Then north on Wisner Ave to Mayo Dr. East on Mayo Dr, following Crystal Lake to 2465 at the end of the road.



Walls, Sandy 2885 10-Mile Rd #50 Rockford, MI 49341-9177 Cell: 616-460-7995 B 8/20 walls.sandra@att.net

From US-131 N - Take Exit 97, 10 Mile Rd toward Rockford. Turn left onto Meijer Dr. Continue straight to StoryPoint Rockford.



Weld, Laura
201 S Monroe St
Rockford, MI 49341-1233
616-866-9230
Cell: 616-690-0015
B 3/08
lweld44@gmail.com

 $\mbox{\it Via US-}131\mbox{\it N}$ - Head north to 10 Mile Rd NE. Take exit 97 from US-131 N for 10

Mile Rd toward Rockford. Continue on 10 Mile Rd NE. Drive to S Monroe St NE in Rockford. Turn south on S Monroe NE

Williams, Jonell (Mrs. Craig) 4645 Wolf Run Ave SE Kentwood, MI 49548-7569 Home: 616-550-9851 B 12/5 craigjonellwilliams@gmail.com

From points north - US-131 S to Exit 79, 44th St SW. Continue on east on 44th St SW to Potter Ave. South to 48th St SW. Right on 48th St SE to Wolf Run Ave SE



I 9/12/16

Zimmerman, Susan B.* (Mrs. Larry)

2584 Buttrick Ave SE Ada, MI 49301-9214 Home: 616-676-3277 Cell: 616-745-2991

B 8/13

susan@thezimmermans.com

From Cascade Rd. & 28th Street -

Southeast on Cascade over Thornapple River (2 blocks), Northeast on Wycliffe, East on $30^{\rm th}$ to Buttrick, North on Buttrick.

NONRESIDENT MEMBERS

Fernstrum, Marilyn (Mrs. David)

13265 Companile Ct Venice, FL 34293-1958 Cell: 616-901-7778

B 1/29

marilyn.fernstrum@gmail.com



I 4/5/67



Heckelsmiller, Emma 360 W Hubbard St Apt 3206 Chicago, IL 60654-5796 224-330-5473 B 7/16 eheckelsmiller@gmail.com



Kaufman, Sue Smith 21715 Stephens St Saint Clair Shores, MI 48080-3965 616-648-3684 B 7/25 susans53@att.net



Taylor, Anita (Mrs. Mark) 9452 W Mary Ann Dr PEOria, AZ 85382-5316 Cell: 623-640-9068 B 9/6 tayloranita09@gmail.com



Wasson, Barbara (Mrs. Jerry)* 137 Bellaire Dr Madison, IN 47250-2330 Cell: 616-560-0430 B 5/4 bswasson@gmail.com



THE P.E.O. WEBSITE

Have you visited the P.E.O. Website? The web address is: www.peointernational.org

(If you don't remember the password, call our President. Add current year (yyyy) to password

Michigan P.E.O. has its own website too: www.peomichigan.org

SOCIAL MEDIA ACCOUNTS

P.E.O. International has four official social media accounts. They are considered to be official communication outlets for P.E.O. International.

- Facebook:
 - o PEO International
 - P.E.O. Chapter AT, Grand Rapids, Michigan
- Instagram @peointernational
- LinkedIn International Chapter of the P.E.O. Sisterhood
- X (formerly Twitter) @PEOSisterhood

BYLAWS

ARTICLE I - MEETINGS

<u>Section 1</u> – Twelve meetings will be held by Chapter AT each year on dates as determined during the yearly planning process, excluding July and August. Meetings are held on the first and/or third Mondays or Saturdays as specified by the program committee and printed in our yearbook.

 $\underline{Section\ 2}\ -\ There\ shall\ be\ no\ meetings\ during\ July\ and\ August.$

<u>Section 3</u> – Meetings shall be held in the homes of members, unless otherwise arranged by the Program Committee.

<u>Section 4</u> – Meetings shall not be scheduled on holidays or to conflict with State Convention. All meetings and State Convention shall be scheduled in the yearbook.

ARTICLE II - NOMINATIONS AND ELECTIONS

<u>Section 1</u> – Nomination and election of officers and of delegate and alternate to Convention of State Chapter and Convention of International Chapter (in odd-numbered years when entitled to representation), shall be held annually by or at the first meeting in March and shall be by a nominating committee.

<u>Section 2</u> – Newly elected officers will be installed at the first March meeting. Each officer

shall hold office until her successor is elected and installed.

<u>Section 3</u> – A Nominating Committee of three members shall be appointed by the president at the first January meeting. By the first March meeting, this committee shall present names of one or more members for each office and for delegate and alternate to conventions.

<u>Section 4</u> – After the committee has reported by or at the first March meeting, and preceding election to fill that office, opportunity shall be given for further nominations from the floor for each office.

<u>Section 5</u> – If nomination has been by committee, if there is but one nomination for an office, if there are no further nominations from the floor for each office, and if nominations are called in sequence, with general consent, the election ballot may be dispensed with, and a voice vote may be taken for the entire ticket.

 $\underline{Section\ 6}$ – No officer shall be nominated or elected to the same office for more than two consecutive years.



ARTICLE III - FINANCE

Section 1 – The annual dues shall be sixty-one dollars (\$61.00) payable the 1st of February and delinquent by the 1st of March. Dues include twenty dollars (\$20.00) for International Chapter, six dollars (\$6.00) for International Chapter - Cottey College, twenty-four dollars (\$24.00) for State Chapter dues, and eleven dollars (\$11.00) for Chapter AT dues; all totaling sixty-one dollars (\$61.00).

<u>Section 2</u> – Nonresident members shall pay the same local dues as active resident members.

<u>Section 3</u> – Chapter AT shall pay annually to the Michigan State Chapter by the 10th of March: ten dollars (\$10.00) to Cottey College Promotion Fund and fifty dollars (\$50.00) to Convention Hostess Fund.

ARTICLE IV - COMMITTEES

Section 1 – Chapter AT shall have the following standing committees, appointed by the president: Auditing/Budget, Bylaws, Finance, Gift and Courtesy, Membership, Newsletter/Publicity, Nomination, P.E.O. Projects, Social, TLC/KIT (Tender Loving Care/Keeping in Touch) and Yearbook. The president shall also appoint a parliamentarian (immediate past president), historian, and technology expert.

Section $\underline{2}$ – The number of members, duties, and chair of each committee shall be assigned by the president of Chapter AT at the first meeting in March to take effect at the first meeting in September of the second year of the president's term. The committee appointments will be for a two-year term.

<u>Section 3</u> – The president shall appoint an Auditing Committee, composed of two members to audit the treasurer's books after the first of March. The committee shall make its report at an April meeting.

ARTICLE V - AMENDMENTS

Section 1 – Amendments of the Bylaws may be made by a two-thirds (%) vote of the members present at a regular meeting, provided such amendments have been proposed in writing at the previous meeting.



STANDING RULES - CHAPTER AT, GRAND RAPIDS, MICHIGAN

- 1. The meetings of Chapter AT shall be held at 7:00 PM on Mondays and 10:00 AM on Saturdays or at a time agreeable to the members of Chapter AT.
- 2. The immediate past president shall be appointed as parliamentarian.
- 3. The outgoing president shall be presented with a plain gold Past President's Gavel Guard, and it shall be the duty of the incoming President to order it.
- 4. The President may be relieved of the responsibilities to give a program or to hostess meetings.
- 5. A visiting P.E.O. shall be requested to leave the meeting during action on membership.
- Chapter AT shall reimburse the expenses for its representative when on Chapter AT business.
- 7. A standing rule may be amended at any regular business meeting of Chapter AT by a two-thirds (¾) vote of those members present without previous notice or by a majority vote with notice.
- 8. A standing rule shall be adopted or discontinued by a majority vote with notice.
- 9. A vote to suspend applies only to the meeting at which the vote is taken.

CALLING, CARING, DRIVE-SHARING TREE

The Calling Caring Drive-Sharing Tree is to encourage members to keep in touch with those members in their general locality and to offer or share a ride when possible.

Central Grand Rapids

Barb Hofweber 616-350-8803

barbhofweber@me.com

Joan Cornelison 616-635-7993

Joan5306@att.net

Molly Paulson 616-443-7034

paulsonm@gvsu.edu

Jolanta Maj 616-375-9130

jmaj242@gmail.com

Cathie Carpenter 616-575-0071

jdcgcarp@sbcglobal.net

Anne Dale Blair 616-706-6524

awdblair@gmail.com

Michele Carlson 616-532-7129

michelem.carlson@gmail.com

East Grand Rapids

Suzanne Butler-Lich 616-340-4511

suzannebutlerlich@gmail.com

Julie Gotch 616-821-6738

jkgotch@gmail.com

Barbara Curphey 630-346-8040

bcurphey@gmail.com

Diane Bartoszewicz 616-634-1859

dianebarto@yahoo.com

Jill Golden 616-368-0677

jdgkea@gmail.com

Nancy Clodfelder 616-450-3641

ncclod@sbcglobal.net

Kentwood

Sue Sundheimer 616-340-7301

suesundheimer@gmail.com

Margaret Terlip 616-581-0313

m.terlip@comcast.net

Cosette Covey 616-241-1113 Jonell Williams 616-550-9851

craigionellwilliams@gmail.com

Christine Carpenter 616-430-8831

christie.teacher5@gmail.com

Rockford

Laura Weld 616-866-9230

lweld44@gmail.com

Sally Pitzer 904-314-3433

salpitzer@comcast.com

Julie Becker 616-304-3304

juliebecker2002@yahoo.com

Kathy Miller 616-874-8490

klmillergr72@gmail.com

Kathleen Mitchell 616-406-6523

Kathleen Marie Mitchell@gmail.com

Sandy Walls 616-460-7995

walls.sandra@att.net

Cindy Wallace 616-322-2973

Cdw2973@sbcglobal.net

Tami Bosco 608-215-7165

zbosco@msn.com

Debera Adams 616-263-9654

wedeada@charter.net

Alto/Caledonia

Cheryl Humbarger 269-924-7593

cherylhum@aol.com

Pam Luetkemeyer 231-923-8830

deercreek4@yahoo.com

Angie Crossin 219-714-3854

acrossin@crossinlawofficesllc.com

N. Grand Rapids

Cindi O'Connor 616-450-1913

cynthiaoconnor51@gmail.com

Helen Basso 616-438-2671

helenbasso@icloud.com

Jeanne Tiggleman 616-540-0497

jeannetiggleman@yahoo.com

Ruth Naylor 616-550-8146

naylor.ruth@gmail.com

Cynthia Grapczynski 616-302-1030

panigrap76@gmail.com

Grandville/Wyoming

Teresa Tiesma 616-328-1874

teresatiesma@gmail.com

Pam Beck 586-615-2630

pwbeck51@gmail.com

Anita Bos 616-257-0803

bosie@comcast.net

Ada/Cascade

Susan Zimmerman 616-676-3277

susan@thezimmermans.com

Stephanie Oldis 630-742-6759

stephanieoldis@gmail.com

Jan Sabin 616-250-7464

jansabin1@gmail.com

Sherri Donovan 616-780-2191

sherridon ovan peo@comcast.net

Julia Best 513-509-9141

bestja@yahoo.com

Sally Meeker 616-915-4188

namiewe@gmail.com

Dianne Smiewec 616-450-3492

dianne.smiewec@gmail.com

BIRTHDAYS

January

- 9 S. Meeker15 M. Carlson
- 17 J. Walton
- 23 J. Cornelison
- 29 M. Fernstrum

February

2 J. Gotch

March

- 6 A. Crossin
- 8 L.Weld
- 10 N. Clodfelder
- 24 A.Bos
- 24 J. Maj

April

- 4 S. Butler-Lich
- 17 Cathie Carpenter
- 21 A. Dale Blair
- 28 S. Donovan

May

- 4 B. Wasson
- 9 C. Wallace
- 16 C.O'Connor

June

- 18 M. Vanoveren
- 24 D. Adams

July

- 6 J. Best
- 8 T. Bosco
- 14 K. Miller
- 15 J. Becker
- 16 E. Heckelsmiller
- 17 J. Sabin
- 25 S. Smith Kaufman
- 26 P. Beck
- 31 J. Golden

August

- 3 B. Neubig
- 11 C. Humbarger
- 13 S. Zimmerman
- 16 T.Tiesma
- 17 S. Sundheimer
- 19 K. Mitchell
- 20 S. Walls

September

- 6 A. Taylor
- 19 C. Grapczynski

October

- 4 D. Smiewec
- 5 B. Curphey

November

- 9 R. Naylor9 S. Oldis
- 13 M. Paulson
- 15 H. Basso
- 19 M. Terlip
- 20 S. Pitzer

December

- 4 J. Tiggleman5 B. Hofweber
- 5 J. Williams
- 7 P. Luetkemeyer
- 9 D. Bartoszewicz
- 21 C. Covey23 Christine Carpenter



CALENDARS 2023 CALENDAR